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July 1, 2022 

VIA U.S. REGULAR MAIL AND EMAIL: 

Drew Bartlett, Executive Director 
South Florida Water Management District 
3301 Gun Club Road 
West Palm Beach, FL 33406 
DBartlett@sfwmd.gov  

RE: Draft Operation Plan for Emergency Pumps in the City of Bonita Springs 

Dear Mr. Barlett: 

The undersigned firm represents the Flow Way Community Development District (“CDD”). 
I write on their behalf to join in the concerns raised by Conservancy of Southwest Florida, Florida 
Wildlife Federation, Audubon Florida, and Audubon of the Western Everglades (collectively, 
“Conservation Easement Holders”) with respect to the final draft Operation Plan for Emergency 
Pumps in the City of Bonita Springs, prepared by the South Florida Water Management District 
(“SFWMD”) on or about May 4, 2022.  

As reflected in the attached deeds, the CDD is currently the owner of preserves located 
within the conservation area known as the Woodlands Slough, which borders the development, 
Esplanade Golf & Country Club of Naples, Inc. (“Esplanade”).  Esplanade is a major community 
comprised of over 1,000 homeowners, who are constituents of the CDD. As the owner of the 
property to be directly affected by the SFWMD’s proposed Operation Plan, the CDD requests that 
it be provided notice both to its District Manager, Jim Ward, and to my office, at 
Gwoods@lawfirmnaples.com, with respect to any actions taken or intended to be taken on the 
Operation Plan. While the May 5, 2022, cover letter from SFWMD enclosing its draft Operation 
Plan provides that notification will be given to Collier County of any decision by SFWMD to 
approve pumping towards the Cocohatchee system in the event of a request from the City of 
Bonita Springs, notification should also promptly be given to the CDD, as a directly affected private 
property stakeholder, under such circumstances as well.  

Of particular concern to the CDD is the lack of environmental studies or analyses that 
have been performed, if any have at all, with respect to the impacts that approval of such an 
Operation Plan would have on protected conservation areas. While the Operation Plan focuses 
on water quantity, it fails to address how quality of the water will be assessed, if at all, as well as 
what impacts that would have on the hydroperiods and the channeling and inundation of preserve 
areas, as well as any effects on foraging habitat of listed species and other wildlife.  With respect 
to the potential for altered hydroperiods, specifically, this could impact the timeframe for the 
preserves reaching their success criteria under applicable permits, and therefore also have 
significant, adverse financial impacts on the CDD.  Further, depending on the nature of the impact 
to the success criteria timeframe and/or any change in tailwater conditions from discharge toward 
the Cocohatchee system, the SFWMD permit, Permit No. 11–02031–P, may require 
modification—to which the CDD does not agree.  

Significantly, the flooding experienced in Bonita is a result of the City of Bonita Springs 
granting permits in areas without sufficient infrastructure to handle the water created by the 
permitted development.  Bonita Springs is literally “dumping” its problem onto property owned by 
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the CDD. With no environmental impact analysis and no plan for remedying the private property 
affected by the pumping, there should be no approval of even an emergency operation plan. The 
CDD also expresses concern with the City of Bonita Springs seemingly circumventing a need to 
fix or otherwise upgrade its own systems and/or infrastructure by applying solely for “emergency 
permits”, as opposed to a 404 Permit through the DEP, which provides much more oversight and 
stringent conditions for compliance. 

Accordingly, the CDD echoes the request of the Conservation Easement Holders in their 
May 23, 2022 letter to the SFWMD that a full environmental analysis and studies on the 
anticipated water quality be completed and presented to all stakeholders, including the CDD, 
before any operation plan is finalized.   

Thank you for your time and consideration.   

Sincerely, 

       WOODS, WEIDENMILLER, MICHETTI  
       & RUDNICK, LLP 

 
      /s/ Gregory N. Woods 

      Gregory N. Woods 

GNW/mrd 
Enclosures 
 
cc:  Shawn Hamilton, Secretary, FDEP 
       Collier County Attorney’s Office 
       Big Cypress Basin Board 
       Jennifer Smith, Chief of Staff, SFWMD 
       Lisa Koehler, Administrator – Big Cypress Basin, SFWMD 
       Akin Owosina, Bureau Chief – Hydrology and Hydraulics, SFWMD 
       Phil Flood, Regional Representative, SFWMD 
       Arlene Hunter, City Manager, City of Bonita Springs 
       Esplanade Golf & Country Club (via counsel) 
       Jessica P. Wilson, Conservancy of Southwest Florida 
       Brad Cornell, Audubon Florida 
       Meredith Budd, Florida Wildlife Federation  
       Eileen Arsenault, Audubon of Western Everglades 
       Jim Ward, District Manager for Flow Way Community Development District 
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